

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey Chief Operating Officer 52 Derby Street Ormskirk West Lancashire L39 2DF

Tuesday, 5 December 2023

TO: THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS

Dear Councillor,

You are summoned to a meeting of the COUNCIL to be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, 52 DERBY STREET, ORMSKIRK L39 2DF on WEDNESDAY, 13 DECEMBER 2023 at 7.30 PM at which your attendance is requested.

Yours faithfully

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey Chief Operating Officer

AGENDA (Open to the Public)

PAGE(S)

- 1. PRAYERS
- 2. APOLOGIES
- 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

If a member requires advice on Declarations of Interest, he/she is advised to contact the Legal and Democratic Services Manager in advance of the meeting. (For the assistance of members a checklist for use in considering their position on any particular item is included at the end of this agenda sheet.)

1 - 2

4.	MINUTES To receive as a correct record, the minutes of the previous meeting held on	
a)	Wednesday, 18 October 2023 (Special Alderman Meeting)	3 - 4
b)	Wednesday, 18 October 2023	5 - 10
5.	ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE MAYOR AND/OR THE CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER	
6.	TO ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10.2	
7.	MINUTES OF COMMITTEES To receive the minutes of the following meetings, to confirm, if appropriate, such of the minutes as require confirmation and to pass such resolutions as the Council may deem necessary:	
a)	Polling Districts and Polling Places Review Committee - Wednesday, 11 October 2023	11 - 12
b)	Audit & Governance Committee - Tuesday, 24 October 2023	13 - 16
c)	Polling Districts and Polling Places Review Committee - Tuesday, 14 November 2023	17 - 18
d)	Planning Committee - Thursday 23 November 2023	19 - 22
8.	PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH EMPLOYMENT RELATED APPEALS AGAINST DISMISSAL OR DEMOTION IN ALL APPLICABLE POLICIES To consider the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation, Housing & Resources.	23 - 40
9.	Q2 GRA REVENUE MONITORING REPORT To consider the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement & Commercial Services. (Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor R Molloy)	41 - 48
10.	Q2 GRA CAPITAL MONITORING REPORT To consider the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement & Commercial Services. (Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor R Molloy)	49 - 70
11.	Q2 TREASURY MANAGEMENT To consider the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement & Commercial Services. (Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor R Molloy)	71 - 82
12.	Q2 HRA REVENUE & CAPITAL MONITORING REPORT	

To consider the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement & Commercial Services. (Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor N Pryce-Roberts)	83 - 96
TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2024/25 To consider the report of the Corporate Director Transformation,	97 - 100

14. EXECUTIVE DECISIONS - SPECIAL URGENCY

Housing & Resources.

To consider the report of the Chief Operating Officer.

101 - 102

15. MOTIONS

13.

To consider the following Motions included on the agenda at the request of the Members indicated:

a) Diverse Councils Declaration - Motion from Councillor Gareth Dowling on behalf of the Labour Group

This Council commits to being a Diverse Council. We agree to:

- 1. Provide a clear public commitment to improving diversity in democracy.
- 2. Demonstrate an open and welcoming culture to all, promoting the highest standards of behaviour and conduct.
- 3. Set out a local Diverse Council Action Plan ahead of the next local elections. Including:
 - Appoint Diversity Ambassadors for each political group on the council to work with each other and local party associations to encourage recruitment of candidates from under-represented groups.
 - Encourage and enable people from under-represented groups to stand for office through the provision of activities such as mentoring and shadowing programmes and information and learning events for people interested in standing as official candidates.
 - Proactive engagement and involvement with local community groups and partner organisations supporting and representing under-represented groups
 - Ensure that all members and candidates complete a candidates' and councillors' survey distributed at election time.
 - Set ambitious targets for candidates from under-represented groups at the next local elections
- 4. Work towards the standards for member support and development as set out in the LGA Councillor Development Charter and/or Charter Plus.
- 5. Demonstrate a commitment to a duty of care for councillors by:
 - providing access to counselling services for all councillors having regard for the safety and wellbeing of councillors whenever they are performing their role as councillors.
 - taking a zero-tolerance approach to bullying and harassment of members including through social networks.
- 6. Provide flexibility in council business by:

- regularly reviewing and staggering meeting times
- encouraging and supporting remote attendance at meetings
- agreeing recess periods to support councillors with caring or work commitments.
- 7. Ensure that all members take up the allowances and salaries to which they are entitled, particularly any reimbursement for costs of care, so that all members receive fair remuneration for their work and that the role of member is not limited to those who can afford it.
- 8. Ensure that the council adopts a parental leave policy setting out members' entitlement to maternity, paternity, shared parental and adoption leave and relevant allowances.
- 9. Ensure that councillors from under-represented groups are represented whenever possible in high profile, high influence roles.

b) Adopt The Charter for Families Bereaved Through Public Tragedy - Motion from Councillor Ann Fennell on behalf of the Labour Group

The Charter for Families Bereaved through Public Tragedy was written by the former Bishop of Liverpool to ensure the suffering endured by families bereaved following the 1989 Hillsborough disaster is not repeated after future disastrous events.

Liverpool City is one of our great neighbours, we have had many families directly and indirectly affected by the Hillsborough Tragedy itself. I believe West Lancashire Borough Council should stand shoulder to shoulder with all bereaved families who have suffered loss and that we ensure that West Lancashire Borough Council do not make the same mistakes in the aftermath of any future disasters.

West Lancashire Borough council therefore resolves to

Adopt The Charter for Families Bereaved Through Public Tragedy

In adopting this charter, West Lancashire Borough Council commit to ensuring that West Lancashire Borough Council learns the lessons of the Hillsborough disaster and its aftermath, so that the perspective of the bereaved families is not lost.

We commit to West Lancashire Borough Council becoming an organisation which strives to:

- 1. In the event of a public tragedy, activate its emergency plan and deploy its resources to rescue victims, to support the bereaved and to protect the vulnerable.
- 2. Place the public interest above our own reputation.
- 3. Approach forms of public scrutiny including public inquiries and inquests with candour, in an open, honest and transparent way, making full disclosure of relevant documents, material and facts. Our objective is to assist the search for the truth. We accept that we should learn from the findings of external scrutiny and from past mistakes.
- 4. Avoid seeking to defend the indefensible or to dismiss or

disparage those who may have suffered where we have fallen short. 5. Ensure all members of staff treat members of the public and each other with mutual respect and with courtesy. Where we fall short, we should apologise straightforwardly and genuinely.

6. Recognise that we are accountable and open to challenge. We will ensure that processes are in place to allow the public to hold us to account for the work we do and for the way in which we do it. We do not knowingly mislead the public or the media.

c) WASPI (Women Against State Pension Inequality) - Motion from Councillor Melissa Parlour on behalf of the Labour Group Council notes that:

- In the 1995 Pensions Act, the Government increased State Pension age for women from 60 to 65, with a further increase to 66 in the 2011 Pensions Act.
- The change was not properly communicated to 3.8m women born in the 1950s until 2012, giving some only one year's notice of a six year increase in their anticipated retirement age. The affected women are in our own authority area.
- The Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman (PHSO)
 has found that the Department for Work and Pensions was
 guilty of maladministration in its handling of the State Pension
 Age increase for women born in the 1950s.
- The All Party Parliamentary Group on State Pension Inequality for Women has concluded that "the impact of DWP maladministration on 1950s-born women has been as devastating as it is widespread. The APPG believes that the case for category 6 injustice is overwhelming and clear. Women have had their emotional, physical, and mental circumstances totally obliterated by a lack of reasonable notice."
- Research commissioned by campaign group WASPI has found that by the end of 2022, more than 220,000 1950s born women will have died waiting for justice since the WASPI campaign began in 2015.
- WASPI's figures show that over the course of the two year COVID pandemic, 1 in 10 women who died was affected by these uncommunicated changes and lost both their state pension income and the opportunity to make alternative retirement plans.
- Despite the Ombudsman's findings and the rapid death rate of those affected, the government is choosing to wait for further reports before taking any action.

Council believes this injustice has not only had a profound effect on the individuals involved but on the wider community in West Lancashire and on local government, not least because:

 Women who would have looked after older relatives or partners are unable to afford to do so, with a knock-on impact on local social care

- Women who would have retired and engaged in caring responsibilities for grandchildren are having to continue working, increasing the childcare burden on the state locally
- Women who have been left in poverty are struggling to meet their housing costs, with a knock-on impact on local housing stock
- There is a broader impact on voluntary services of all kinds locally, which are missing out on able, active volunteers who would otherwise have been able to retire from full-time work as planned
- Our local economy is negatively affected by the reduced spending power and disposable income the uncommunicated State Pension Age changes has brough about among women born in the 1950s

Council supports:

- The conclusion of the All Party Parliamentary Group on State Pension Inequality that women born in the 1950s have suffered a gross injustice, affecting their emotional, physical and mental circumstances in addition to causing financial hardship.
- A swift resolution to this ongoing injustice before more and more women die waiting for compensation.
- The WASPI campaign for an immediate one-off compensation payment of between £11,666 and £20,000 to those affected, with the most going to women who were given the shortest notice of the longest increase in their state pension age.

Council asks:

 The Leader of the Council to write to local Members of Parliament, and to the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions to outline the effects of the injustice to 1950s women on the community in West Lancashire and to seek their support for an immediate compensation package.

We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille and in other languages.

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE: Please see attached sheet.
MOBILE PHONES: These should be switched off or to 'silent' at all meetings.

For further information, please contact:-Jacky Denning on 01695 585384 Or email jacky.denning@westlancs.gov.uk

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE FOR: COUNCIL MEETINGS WHERE OFFICERS ARE PRESENT (52 DERBY STREET, ORMSKIRK)

PERSON IN CHARGE: Most Senior Officer Present

ZONE WARDEN: Member Services Officer / Lawyer

DOOR WARDEN(S) Usher / Caretaker

IF YOU DISCOVER A FIRE

1. Operate the nearest **FIRE CALL POINT** by breaking the glass.

2. Attack the fire with the extinguishers provided only if you have been trained and it is safe to do so. **Do not** take risks.

ON HEARING THE FIRE ALARM

- 1. Leave the building via the **NEAREST SAFE EXIT. Do not stop** to collect personal belongings.
- 2. Proceed to the **ASSEMBLY POINT** on the car park and report your presence to the **PERSON IN CHARGE.**
- 3. **Do NOT** return to the premises until authorised to do so by the PERSON IN **CHARGE.**

NOTES:

Officers are required to direct all visitors regarding these procedures i.e. exit routes and place of assembly.

The only persons not required to report to the Assembly Point are the Door Wardens.

CHECKLIST FOR PERSON IN CHARGE

- 1. Advise other interested parties present that you are the person in charge in the event of an evacuation.
- 2. Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire escape routes and informed any interested parties of the escape routes.
- 3. Make yourself familiar with the location of the assembly point and informed any interested parties of that location.
- 4. Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire alarm and detection control panel.
- 5. Ensure that the zone warden and door wardens are aware of their roles and responsibilities.
- 6. Arrange for a register of attendance to be completed (if considered appropriate / practicable).

IN THE EVENT OF A FIRE, OR THE FIRE ALARM BEING SOUNDED

- 1. Ensure that the room in which the meeting is being held is cleared of all persons.
- 2. Evacuate via the nearest safe Fire Exit and proceed to the **ASSEMBLY POINT** in the car park.
- 3. Delegate a person at the **ASSEMBLY POINT** who will proceed to **HOME CARE LINK** in order to ensure that a back-up call is made to the **FIRE BRIGADE**.
- 4. Delegate another person to ensure that **DOOR WARDENS** have been posted outside the relevant Fire Exit Doors.

- 5. Ensure that the **ZONE WARDEN** has reported to you on the results of his checks, **i.e.** that the rooms in use have been cleared of all persons.
- 6. If an Attendance Register has been taken, take a **ROLL CALL**.
- 7. Report the results of these checks to the Fire and Rescue Service on arrival and inform them of the location of the **FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL**.
- 8. Authorise return to the building only when it is cleared to do so by the **FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE OFFICER IN CHARGE**. Inform the **DOOR WARDENS** to allow re-entry to the building.

NOTE:

The Fire Alarm system will automatically call the Fire Brigade. The purpose of the 999 back-up call is to meet a requirement of the Fire Precautions Act to supplement the automatic call.

CHECKLIST FOR ZONE WARDEN

- 1. Carry out a physical check of the rooms being used for the meeting, including adjacent toilets, kitchen.
- 2. Ensure that **ALL PERSONS**, both officers and members of the public are made aware of the **FIRE ALERT**.
- 3. Ensure that ALL PERSONS evacuate IMMEDIATELY, in accordance with the FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE.
- 4. Proceed to the **ASSEMBLY POINT** and report to the **PERSON IN CHARGE** that the rooms within your control have been cleared.
- 5. Assist the **PERSON IN CHARGE** to discharge their duties.

It is desirable that the **ZONE WARDEN** should be an **OFFICER** who is normally based in this building and is familiar with the layout of the rooms to be checked.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR DOOR WARDENS

- Stand outside the FIRE EXIT DOOR(S)
- 2. Keep the **FIRE EXIT DOOR SHUT.**
- 3. Ensure that **NO PERSON**, whether staff or public enters the building until **YOU** are told by the **PERSON IN CHARGE** that it is safe to do so.
- 4. If anyone attempts to enter the premises, report this to the **PERSON IN CHARGE.**
- 5. Do not leave the door **UNATTENDED.**